mines, and had complied with the Department of Labor's filing require-
ments for miners' representatives under 30 C.F.R. Part 40. 2/
In December, as a result of Martin County's refusal to permit
monitoring on October 25, the Council filed a discrimination complaint
under section 105(c) of the Mine Act with the Department of Labor's Mine
Safety and Health Administration ("MSHA").  MSHA investigated the com-
plaint and on March 5, 1980, issued Martin County a citation alleging a
violation of 30 C.F.R. § 48.3, which is a training regulation imple-
menting section 115 of the Mine Act.  MSHA advised the Council by
letter, however, of its determination that Martin County's refusal to
allow the Council to monitor training classes was not a violation of
section 105(c)(l) of the Act.
On March 18, 1980, the Council was again denied permission by
Martin County to enter mine property to monitor miner training classes
at the No. 1-S mine.  Again, the Council's representatives were not
asserting any right to accompany an inspector.  On the same date, MSHA
issued a withdrawal order for Martin County's failure to abate the
alleged violation of section 48.3.  Martin County filed a notice of
contest of the citation and withdrawal order.  The Council, in turn,
filed a discrimination complaint with the Commission, which is the
subject of this case, based on Martin County's October and March
refusals to allow monitoring.  The complaint was filed pursuant to
section 105(c)(3) because of MSHA1s prior determination that Martin
County's refusal to permit monitoring did not violate section 105(c)(l),
Finally, MSHA filed a civil penalty petition for the alleged violation
of section 48.3.  The Commission's administrative law judge subsequently
consolidated the proceedings.
On October 3, 1980, the Commission's judge rendered his decision
concluding that Martin County had violated section 105(c)(l).  He
awarded the Council attorney's fees and expenses but did not, at that
point, specify the sums involved.  Both Martin County and the Council
filed petitions for discretionary review.  On November 12, 1980, we
returned the case to the judge for a determination of the amount of
attorney's fees.  2 FMSHRC 3216 (November 1980).  On February 23, 1981,
the judge awarded the Council $14,730.51 in attorney's fees and ex-
penses.  Martin County then filed a petition for discretionary review,
which we granted on April 3, 1981.  The Secretary of Labor filed an
amicus brief on review, and we heard oral argument in the case.
~2JEarlier, in March 1979, Martin County had also denied Council
representatives permission to monitor training classes.  On March 12,
1979, the Council filed a section 105(c) discrimination complaint over
this incident and other aspects of Martin County1s refusal to recognize
the Council's status as a representative of miners.  On October 24,
1979—the day before Martin County again refused the Council permission
to monitor classes—the Council voluntarily withdrew Its complaint
pursuant to a settlement with Martin County.  The withdrawal letter
stated that the Council and Martin County had reached an understanding
that the Council was the authorized representative of miners at the No.
1-S and 1-C mines.  The letter did not mention the subject o£ monitoring
training classes.
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